ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 23, 2005
1:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s, Co-Chair
Representative JimElkins
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Mary Kapsner

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 197

"An Act exenpting certain natural gas exploration and production
facilities from oil discharge prevention and contingency plans
and proof of financial responsibility, and anending the powers
and duties of the Alaska G| and Gas Conservation Comn ssion
with respect to those plans; and providing for an effective
date. "

- MOVED CSHB 197(RES) OUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 5
Qpposing inposition of a mlk tax on Al askans.

- MOVED CSHIJR 5(RES) QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 197

SHORT TITLE: O L SPILL EXEMPTI ONS FOR GAS WELLS
SPONSOR(S): O L & GAS

03/ 03/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 03/ 05 (H &G RES

03/ 15/ 05 (H &G AT 5: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 15/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 23, 2005



03/ 15/ 05 (H M NUTE( 08G)

03/ 16/ 05 (H) O8G RPT 5DP 1NR

03/ 16/ 05 (H) DP: SAMUELS, GARDNER,
ROKEBERG, KOHRI NG

03/ 16/ 05 (H) NR. KERTTULA

03/ 21/ 05 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 21/ 05 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 21/ 05 (H) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 23/ 05 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124

BILL: HIR 5

SHORT TI TLE: NO M LK TAX

DAHLSTROM

SPONSOR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) LYNN

01/ 10/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 10/ 05 (H) RES, L&C

03/ 21/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 21/ 05 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 23/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

BRECK TOSTEVI N, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Envi ronnental Section

Depart ment of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding HB

JOHN NORMAN, Conmi ssioner/ Chair

Al aska O |1 and Gas Conservati on Conm ssi on ( AOGCC)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB

STEVE DAVI ES, Petrol eum Geol ogi st

Al aska G| and Gas Conservation Conmi ssion

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding HB

MARK MYERS, Director

Division of Gl and Gas

Department of Natural Resources

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng HB

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE RES COW TTEE

197.

197.

197.

197.

March 23, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HIJIR 5 as sponsor.

PETE FELLMAN, Dairy Farnmer and Staff
to Representative John Harris

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 5.

JI M ElI CHSTADT, Seni or Manager

Public Affairs and Trade Policy

Dairy Trade Coalition

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 5.

MARI O CASTI LLO
Washi ngton, D.C.
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 5.

JLONA RI CHEY
Al aska Dairy Coalition
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 5.

LARRY DEVI LBI SS, Director

Di vision of Agriculture

Depart ment of Natural Resource

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HIR 5.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR RALPH SAMJELS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:03:17 PM Represent ati ves
Samuel s, Seaton, Elkins, LeDoux, O son, and Gatto were present
at the call to order. Representative Kapsner arrived as the

meeting was in progress.

HB 197-O L SPILL EXEMPTI ONS FOR GAS VELLS

CO CHAIR SAMJELS announced that the first order of business
woul d be HOUSE BILL NO 197, "An Act exenpting certain natural
gas exploration and production facilities from oil discharge
prevention and contingency plans and proof of financial
responsibility, and anending the powers and duties of the Al aska
O 1 and Gas Conservation Conmmi ssion with respect to those plans;
and providing for an effective date.”

COCHAIR SAMJELS said he wanted to discuss the crude oil
definition in HB 197.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 23, 2005



BRECK TOSTEVI N, Assi st ant Attorney General, Envi r onnment al
Section, Departnent of Law, Anchorage, said there isn't a
definition of crude oil elsewhere in the statutes, and it was
put there to clarify the meaning of the exenption. "The
exenption for a natural gas facility did not extend to a
facility that is going to be producing or transporting crude
oil. So crude oil is defined in terms of not including natura
gas or a refined petrol eum product,” he said.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said this is an exenption, but the
exenption does not include crude oil, and crude oil does not
i nclude natural gas or refined petrol eum products. He said that
nmeans refined petroleum products would be exenpt the sanme way
natural gas is exenpt. Wthin the definition it is tying
natural gas and refined petroleum products together, he added.
Unless there is a reason to keep "refined petrol eum products” in
the definition, he said he would like to renove it.

MR. TOSTEVIN said Representative Seaton is msunderstanding the

way the exenption works. "The exenption is for a natural gas
facility. Now if a natural gas facility involves crude oil,
then there is no exenption. It would need to have a conti ngency

plan. Wth respect to a refined product, if you had a facility,
for exanple, that was storing refined products, that doesn't
take it out of the exenption unless the refined petroleum
product exceeds the volune set out in (a) of that section, which
is 10,000 barrels.™

1:07: 37 PM

MR. TOSTEVIN said hones and residences store small anounts of
refined petroleum and a plan is not required. "So what the
bill is saying is that if you are a natural gas facility and you

are only producing gas, and you're not producing crude oil or
you're not storing petroleum products in anounts that exceed
10,000 barrels, then you are exenpt," he stated.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the |anguage regarding exceeding

10,000 barrels is in a different section. The bill says a
natural gas production facility or termnal facility is exenpt,
and crude oil is not exenpt, he said. But the bill then states
that crude oil is not a refined petroleum product, which

confuses the subject, he stated.

MR. TOSTEVIN said that in Section 4, lines 11 and 12, the bill
says "for purposes of this subsection.™ He continued:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 23, 2005



The definitions are only for this subsection, and we

aren't exenpting crude oil facilities. W're not
exenpting refined product facilities. VWhat we're
saying is, is what does "natural gas production

facility" mean. And then in Section 2, it goes on to
say "a natural gas production facility neans a
platformfacility or structure that is used solely for
the production ... of natural gas." It does not
include a facility that pr oduces, st ores, or
transports natural gas in conbination with crude oil
or that would be an oil termnal facility, if it's
storing oil in excess of the amounts in [subsection]
(a). The practical point that this section is ained
at is: a gas exploration facility may need | ubricant,
fuel for engines and for operations on it, and so even
if it's exploring for natural gas, it's going to have
smal | amounts of petroleumon it.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that is allowed up to the barrel
limt anyway.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if natural gas is always nethane.

MR. TOSTEVIN said the definition of natural gas in statute is a
hydrocarbon that is in a gaseous state at 70 degrees Fahrenheit
and at atnospheric pressure, and it is not limted to nethane.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there is anything called natura
gas that is not nethane.

JOHN NORMAN, Comm ssioner/Chair, Alaska QG| and Gas Conservation
Comm ssion, Anchorage, said nethane is the "ordinary" natural
gas, but it can include hydrocarbons that are not nethane.

STEVE DAVI ES, Pet rol eum Geol ogi st Alaska GOl and Gas
Conservation Commission, said the intent is to elimnate the
exenption for things that would spill and flow on the ground.

MR. NORMAN said natural gas is a gaseous form of petroleum or
hydr ocar bon consi sting of hydrocarbon gases and vapors including
nmet hane, ethane, propane, butane, pentane, and hexane.

1:17:18 PM

MARK MYERS, Director, Division of QI and Gas, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, said oil spill contingency plans are for

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 23, 2005



under ground production; "it did not relate to the potential use
or storage tanks or other facilities on the surface,” which he
thinks are covered under other Departnment of Environnental

Conservation regul ations. "This bill is to look at the risks
and the clean-up associated with a rel ease of hydrocarbons from
formation,” which would not be refined. "So it is naeking a

distinction between that sort of regulation that you would use
for any user on the surface that would be storing hydrocarbons
or grease, or oil, or gasoline, or kerosene for whatever
pur poses, versus those that would be drilling to an underground
reservoir and finding unrefined crude.”

1:20: 06 PM

MR. MYERS said, "The bill is pretty well thought out in ternms of
its definition of natural gas, which, | think, fits the purpose
for spill planning.™” He added that one would never encounter
refined products in an underground reservoir, "and that 1is

covered through other regulations in terns of storage of surface
facility use."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 3, line 25, where the
| anguage defines oil. He said there are two definitions, and
one says a plan is required for crude but not natural gas or
refined petrol eum products. "We're giving a blanket exclusion

not based on 10,000 barrels or anything else, to natural gas and
refined petrol eum products.”™ On line 25 and 26, "we're defining
oil and we're just renoving natural gas, which |I don't have a
problemwth. | amtrying to figure out why, when we have ot her

exclusion portions that allow certain quantities of refined
petrol eum products, why are we putting this in the definition of
crude and then excluding these fromthe exclusion?" he asked.

MR. MYERS said, "To be honest, | will have to |look nobre at the
section to answer your question.”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the purpose of HB 197 is to exclude
natural gas production, not refined petroleum products, and he
asked if there would be a detrinmental effect by taking "refined
petrol eum products” out of the bill

1: 24: 17 PM

MR. TOSTEVIN said there are pre-existing definitions of oil and
natural gas. He continued:

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 23, 2005



Lines 25-26 say oil has a neaning in that section and
that oil doesn't include natural gas, because there is
sone overlap between the tw definitions, because
but ane and propane are listed as an oil. But then it
explains that those things ... are part of natural
gas, if they're gaseous or if they're under pressure.
The exenption you're speaking of, wth respect to
petrol eum products and the volunes--that's in a
different section of AS 46.04.050, that's 050 (a).

That's an existing exenption. So all we're sinply
doing in (b) is acknow edging that that exenption
exists and that if you're storing ... the way it was
originally phrased is, in existing statute, |just
refers to oil, and that's anbi guous because oil can be
crude oil, [it] can be refined products, [or] it could
be sonme conponents of natural gas. So each one of

these definitions is really just explaining what 1is
being excluded when we speak in terns of what 1is
nat ural gas. The harm if you took it out, it would
create, well, the provisions were put in, really, to
provide clarity as to the scope of what does it nean
when vyou're transporting/producing natural gas in
conbination with oil, because that took you out of the
exenption if you had oil with you. So if you took out
those definitions it would be unclear as to what was
nmeant by the term"oil".

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he agrees with Representative Seaton
The sinplest process can turn crude into a refined product, he
sai d.

CO CHAIR SAMJELS said he sees what M. Tostevin is saying.
"We're not changing any exenption, we are sinply clarifying what
we nean the exenption is. The exenption for this is if you're
drilling for gas and there is no chance ... that you'll hit oil,
that you don't have to have the c-plan. That's all we're doing
here. W' re not changing any other exenptions - there's no fast
one being pulled on the refined petrol eum products. But if you
happen to have gas for the vehicles or the punps or oil for this
or that, just regular lubricants for the day-to-day business of
running a facility, that you don't need a c-plan because you
happen to have that on site.”

1: 27: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said it is like an equation; crude oil
does not equal natural gas, so there will be no exenption wth

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 23, 2005



crude oil. But then crude oil does not nean refined petroleum
products, he said, so it looks like a |oophole. "I am all for
exenpting natural gas,” he said, but not refined petroleum
pr oduct s. He said there is no concern with snmall anpbunts of
petrol eum products because that is covered in another section.
He said he still hasn't gotten an acceptabl e expl anati on.

CO CHAIR SAMIJELS said it is only a clarification.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered to nove Amendnent 2, | abeled 24-
LS0664\ G. 1, Chenowet h, 3/23/05, as foll ows:

Page 3, lines 13-14:
Del ete "or refined petrol eum products”

Page 4, Lines 7-8:
Del ete "or refined petrol eum products”

CO CHAI R SAMUELS obj ect ed.

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Seaton, Elkins,
LeDoux, O son, and Gatto voted in favor of Anendnent 2.
Represent ati ves Samuel s and Kapsner vot ed agai nst it.

Therefore, Amendnment 2 passed by a vote of 5-2.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HB 197 as anended out of
commttee wth individual recomrendations and the attached
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 197(RES) was
reported fromthe House Resources Standing Commttee.

HIR 5-NO M LK TAX

CO-CHAIR SAMUELS announced that the final order of business
woul d be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 5, (Opposing inposition of a
mlk tax on Al askans.

1: 32: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN, Al aska State Legislature, said the tax
referred to in HIRS is a nmandatory tax assessnent from 1983,
which was designed to increase sales of mlk when there was a
m | k surplus. Al aska, Hawaii, and Puerto Rico were exenpted
fromthe tax because all are mlk deficit states. The tax would
be a serious detrinment to Alaskan m |k producers and consuners,
he said, and it wuld only benefit states that have mlk
sur pl uses. The National M1k Federation wants to tax foreign

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 23, 2005



mlk inmports, and the United States can't tax foreign mlk
unl ess all states are taxed, he expl ai ned.

1: 34: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that Al aska already has high mlk
prices. "M1lk in bush communities is already outrageous ... to
the point that children in nmany of these comunities are
drinking sugar-|laden soft drinks rather than mlk because it's
| ess expensive,"” he said. He said Alaska dairy farnmers have
troubl e nmaki ng ends neet.

1: 35: 01 PM

PETE FELLMAN, Staff to Representative John Harris, Alaska State
Legislature, said he produces mlk and is representing mlKk
producers. He said the tax would be an undue burden on Al aska
dairy farners. Currently, 75 percent of Alaska mlk cones from
outside the state, he said. As a producer, he said, he has
shi ppi ng costs and del ays unlike farnmers in the Lower 48 states.

1:36: 50 PM

MR. FELLMAN said there has not been an increase in Alaska's mlKk
prices since 1987, but fuel costs have doubled, and everything
el se has gone up. He al so said Al aska producers don't get the
benefit of being paid extra for mlk with high butterfat and
pr ot ei n. The tax would equal one cent per gallon, which would
cost M. Fellmn $1, 200 per year.

1:39: 30 PM

CO CHAI R SAMUJELS asked if this tax is pending in Congress.
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN sai d yes.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the purpose of the tax is to
encourage mlk consunption. Alaska consunes all of its mlk, so
there is no need to advertise, he surm sed.

1: 40: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked why farnmers aren't paid for mlk
conponent s.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 23, 2005



MR. FELLMAN said the question requires a |long answer, but there
was an attenpt three years ago to pass legislation to conpensate
for butter.

1: 42: 37 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked who nekes t he deci sions.

MR. FELLMAN said Matanuska Maid is a state-owned facility, and
there is a creanery corporation that is supposed to represent
dairy farmers. The sharehol ders of Matanuska Maid is the state
of Al aska, but the creanmery corporation clains it does not need
to follow the recommendati ons of the sharehol ders.

1:44: 44 PM

JIM EICHSTADT, Senior Manager of Public Affairs and Trade
Policy, Dairy Trade Coalition, said that even though the tax is
1.3 cents per gallon, the mddlemen are going to double or
triple the increase to consuners. He said Congress never
intended the tax to include Al aska. Wen the tax was
i npl enented there were mlk surpluses costing the Anerican
public mllions of dollars because the governnent was buying the
products and not wusing them he said. Instead of paying to
store dairy products in caves, he stated, a mlk tax was
instituted to market the product.

1:48: 09 PM

MR. ElI CHSTADT said there is no longer a big surplus, but the
m | k pronotion bureaucracy has taken a life of its owm. In 2002
organic mlk was excluded from the tax, he said, so there is no
sense to suddenly apply the tax to Alaska, Hawaii, and Puerto

Ri co. The dairy industry has noted that Al aska is not part of
the dairy surplus problem but the |obby in Washington is behind
t he tax.

1: 51: 03 PM

MARI O CASTILLO, Washington, D.C., said he used to be the Chief
of Staff for the House Agriculture Commttee, and he quoted two
republicans who said "there is sonmething fundanmentally un-
American about forcing people to pay taxes.” He said he is not
agai nst marketing pronotions, but the mlk tax is designed to
hurt people |ike Pete Fell man.

1:52: 42 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 23, 2005



JLONA RICHEY, Alaska Dairy Coalition, said there is a double
taxation on mlk comng in from Seattle and other places. She
said HHR 5 will help the elderly and the young who depend on the
m K.

LARRY DEVILBISS, Director, Division of Agriculture, Departnent

of Natural Resource, Palmer, said, "This is a really a no
brainer."

1:54: 37 PM

COCHAIR SAMJELS said the last whereas on page 2, line 8,

doesn't seem to fit the topic, and he would like to elimnate
it.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said he had no problemelimnating it.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved Amendnent 1 as foll ows:

Page 2, delete lines 8-11
There being no objection, Amendnent 1 carried.
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report HIR 5 as anmended out of
out of commttee with individual recommendations. There being
no objection, CSHIR 5(RES) was reported from the House Resources
St andi ng Conmi ttee.
1:56:13 PM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 1:56 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 23, 2005



